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St. John's Episcopal Church is situated on Green Street about one
block north of the Market House, with Cross Creek bounding the property on
the rear. It is a product of several periods of construction. The
rectangular stuccoed brick building, four bﬁ&s wide and five deep, is
covered by a gable roof, and has corner facade towers, a projecting
entrance pavilion and a rear polygonal apse. The building is set on a
foundation of stone blocks. In the right facade corner of the foundation
is a single uniunscribed bilock of granite.

The entrance pavilion, located in the center of the main (west) facade,
is two bays wide, surmounted by a pediment with a stuccoed corbel cornice
which continues inco the stuccoed tympanum. In each bay is a large double
door of Gothic design hung on curvilinear strap hinges, surmounted by a
pointed-arched stained glass transom. Granite steps ascend to the facade
doors. Identical square towers rise at the facade corners. 1In the front
and side face at the first level is a pointed arch with a concrete sill,
the front one having at the top a glazed arch with tracery and the side
arch being blind. On the front and outside face of the tower at the
second level i3 a recessed quatrefoil design. Atop each tower is a small
center turret resting on a flat-paneled base, square in section, with an
identical smaller turret rising at each corner. Each turret is covered
with pressed tin. (These turrets may have been added after the towers.)
The facade gable wall rises above the entrance pavilion between the towers
and is crenellated. 1In the center of the upper facade is a rectangular
recessed panel. '

A stuccoed brick corbel cornice like the cornice of the entrance
ornaments the side eaves. In each side bay is a pointed-arched opening
containing a stained glass window, with a molded architrave and concrete
sill. A one-to-five common bond brick polygonal apse, an early twentieth
century addition, projects from the partially stuccoed rear elevation. A
twentieth century parish house, built in a style compatible with the main
building, is attached to the nave on the south side.

The eccentric form of the building stems from the 1830s rebuilding--
probably in the Gothic style-—-on the 1817 walls. The appearance of the
church suggests that the main block with its corbel cornice and the pedi-
mented center pavilion may remain from the first building and that the
towers and crenellation may be part of the 1830s work. The curious
clusters of turrets may date from that period or from a later one.

The church has a liturgical arrangement, with an entrance hall, a nave
with a center aisle, and an apse. The original dinterior fabric, consisting
of wooden floors, plastered walls and ceiling, openings with simple molded-
architraves, and pews and galleries, is substantially intact. On each
side of the entrance hall, a twentieth century ogee-—arched door opens to
the enclosed stair, which winds inside the tower to the gallery level.

Each stairwell is covered with diagonal beaded sheathing, which extends
above the stair as a balustrade. Two double doors, identical to the stair
doors, lead into the nave. These doors have beadad architraves with

roundel c¢orner blocks. On each side of the centor aisle is a double
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sectign of pews. The pews are constructed of hand-planed wood, with paneled
backs and simple curved paneled sides. The wainscot is a recent replacement.
The gallery, continuous along three sides, is supported by clustered wooden
colommettes. Several of the gallery supports project through the seats of
the mave pews. The gallery balustrade features an arcade of pointed-arched
panels with trefoil ornament. Beneath the balustrade in each bay of the
gallery appears the rosette head of an iron tie rod which extends into the
exterior wall to give additional support. At the juncture of the walls and
the geiling is a concave curve ornamented with moldings. The ceiling rises
to a shallow pointed arch in the center. The apse is framed by a tall
pointad arch and contains elaborate appointments continuing the Gothic
Revival motif. -
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STATEMEMT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. John's Episcopal Church, one of the two oldest church buildings
in Fayetteville, houses the first Episcopal congregation formed in that
city. The 1831-1833 structure, a symbol of continuity to local citizens,
is a prominent historical landmark of downtown Fayetteville. Its curious
design is the result of the rebuilding of the structure from the brick
shell which remained after the "Great Fire of 1831." The interior is
distinguished by the delicate Gothic Revival gallery with clustered
colonnatte supports and trefoliated railing and the lofty arched plaster
ceiling, both dating from the 1830s rebuilding. ‘

On April 7, 1817, St. John's Episcopal Church was formally organized
by a small group of Fayetteville citizens. This group began plans for a
hovse of worship immediately. A "Notice to contractors' in the Carolina

Any person desirous to undertake the building of a BRICK CHURCH

in the Town of Fayetteville, N.C. . . . It is contemplated that
the size of the building will be from 40 to 45 feet wide, and from
60 to 70 feet long--with a Steeple proportionate to the size of
the Building. A Contract will be made for the completion of the
Church entire, or for the Brick and Wood work separately.

This advertisement was also placed in the Raleigh Star, Petersburg
Intelligencer, and the Newbern Federal Republican, but it is not known who
received the contract. The new St. John's Church was consecrated by
Bishop Richard Channing Moore of Virginia on April 18, 1819.

The appearance of the original building is unknown, for it burned on
May 29, 1831, in the disastrous fire which started on Market Square and
destroyed over 400 Fayetteville buildings. An entry in the parish register
states that the building was ". . . rebuilt on the same walls and con-
secrated on the 13th of January, 1833, by Right Rev. Levi Stillman."
It continues in regular use.
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ADDENDUM TO ST. JOHN'S EPTSCOPAL CHURCH, FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINK, CUMBERLAND
COUNTY.

August 15, 1832 dissue of North Carolina Journal is not extant.

Carolina Observer, July 3, 1832, Vol. XVI, No. 787, p. 3.

St John's Church . . . We estimate this edifice as a singularly happy effort,
and the more so, as it introduces into our Southern Country a style of archi-
tecture to which, we have been hitherto unaccustomed. The taste, observable
throughout, is of the ancient Gothic, and the execution reflects great credit
on the skill of the Architect, Mr. Drummond . . . The angles are supported by
towers of twelve feet square extending from the tower above the roof and sur-
mounted each with a spire of twenty feet and four minarets of twelve feet in
height. The whole aspect is bold and striking-—the walls including the towers
are covered with cement and penciled, and exhibit the appearance of a white
free stone material. The Roof, Spires, Minarets and everything besides
.external are metallic and the building is estimated fully proof against the
ravage of fire. . . .
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